
Page 1 of 5 

August 24, 2020 Galena City Council Meeting 

Notice of Meeting by Teleconference 

Due to the essential nature of public meetings in conducting official City business and in an effort to 
protect against the spread of COVID‐19 during public gatherings, the upcoming Monday, August 24, 
2020  Galena  City  Council  meeting  will  take  place  via  teleconference  utilizing  Zoom  Video 
Communications.  The  meeting  will  be  conducted  at  Zoom  meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82375834304 (Meeting  ID: 823 7583 4304) or 312‐626‐6799, with the 
following changes, additional opportunities to participate, and reminders: 
 
• MEETING START TIME – City Council meeting will start at 6:30 p.m.  

  

• PUBLIC  COMMENT  –  Public  Comment  will  be  conducted  as  usual  near  the  beginning  of  the 

meeting. To ensure the public will be able to participate the city is providing three ways in which 

the public can submit their comments. These same three methods may be used for commenting 

during public hearings. 

 

1. TELECONFERENCED — Public is invited to participate via Zoom Video Communications, meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82375834304 (Meeting ID: 823 7583 4304). When the presiding 

officer calls for public comments during the meeting, an attendee wishing to speak by video 

and/or audio link will be asked to “raise hand”. 

 

A. If using a PC or Mac: 

 

1. During a meeting, click on the icon labeled "Participants" at the bottom center of 

your PC or Mac screen.  

 

2. At the bottom of the now open “Participants” window on the right side of the 

screen, click the button labeled "Raise Hand." Your digital hand is now raised. The 

meeting  presiding officer will  recognize  you  to  speak  for  not more  than  three 

minutes. Your audio and video will be enabled by the meeting host. 

  

3. After speaking, lower you hand by clicking the same button, now labeled "Lower 

Hand." Your audio and video will be disabled by the meeting host. 

 

B. If using a mobile device:  

 

1. During a meeting, tap the screen and click on the icon labeled "More" on the top 

right of the screen. Tap "Raise Hand". A blue hand icon will appear next to your 

name on the “Participants” list. Your digital hand is now raised.  

2. The meeting presiding officer will recognize you to speak for not more than three 

minutes. Your audio and video will be enabled by the meeting host. 

3. After speaking, lower you hand by tapping the “More” icon and then tap "Lower 

Hand." Your audio and video will be disabled by the meeting host. 

Page 1 of 62



Page 2 of 5 

2. E‐MAILED  –  Public  comments  or  public  hearing  testimony  can  be  submitted  via  email  to 

mmoran@cityofgalena.org with the subject "City Council Public Comment". The City Clerk will 

read emails received out loud (up to 3 minutes) into the public record. 

 

3. MAILED – Public comments or public hearing testimony can be mailed to the Galena City Clerk, 

101 Green Street, Galena,  IL  61036.  Please  include  "City Council  Public  Comment" on  the 

outside of the envelope. The City Clerk will read written comments received out loud (up to 3 

minutes) into the public record. Please know that postage delivery time could cause the mailing 

to arrive after the meeting time. 

 

• SOCIAL DISTANCING – Public meetings will be conducted via teleconference/virtually utilizing Zoom 

Video  Communications  to  insure  recommended  social  distancing.  Join  the  meeting  at 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82375834304  (Meeting  ID:  823  7583  4304).  The  public  may  also 

participate by phone by calling 312‐626‐6799 and entering the meeting ID. 

 

• AGENDA — The meeting agenda follows this page and is posted at www.cityofgalena.org and on 

the exterior of City Hall, 101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois.  

 

• NOTICE  – Members of  the public  participating  in  the meeting  via  Zoom will  be muted unless 

recognized by the presiding officer to speak. Participants joining the meeting via Zoom agree that 

video and/or audio from their computer or device may be broadcast to other meeting participants 

and may be recorded. By joining the meeting, participants also agree that their video feed to the 

meeting may be disabled by the presiding officer and their audio feed may be muted. Members of 

the public participating via Zoom are encouraged to test their system prior to the meeting start 

time and become familiar with  the Zoom operating system and any changes  to  the operating 

system that may have been made by Zoom. 

 

• QUESTIONS — Questions about the teleconference meeting may be directed to City Administrator, 

Mark Moran at mmoran@cityofgalena.org or 815‐777‐1050. 

 

Page 2 of 62



Page 3 of 5 

 
 

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

6:30 P.M., MONDAY, AUGUST 24, 2020 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82375834304 (Meeting ID: 823 7583 4304) or 312‐626‐6799 
  

ITEM                                                            DESCRIPTION 
 

20C‐0330. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

20C‐0331. Roll Call 

20C‐0332. Establishment of Quorum 
20C‐0333. Pledge of Allegiance 
20C‐0334. Reports of Standing Committees 
20C‐0335. Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 

   
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
20C‐0336. 

 
Public Hearing on an Annexation Agreement with J. William Vincent and Robert 
Dickinson of Ramonalisa LLC for the Grant Hills Motel, 9372 US Route 20 West 

25‐44 

 
20C‐0337. 

 
Public Hearing to Review Project Performance and Obtain Citizens Input 
Regarding the Completed Downtown Sidewalk Replacement Project  

‐‐ 

 
LIQUOR COMMISSION 

 
None. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA CA20‐16 

 
ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
20C‐0338. 

 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of August 10, 2020  

6‐11 

Page 3 of 62



Page 4 of 5 

 
ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 

 
20C‐0339. 

 
Approval of Budget Amendment BA21‐05 for a Professional Study of Phosphorus 
Removal Options for the Wastewater Treatment Plant 

 
12‐19 

 
20C‐0340. 

  
Approval of an On‐street Parking Space in Front of 224 N. Bench Street for 
Persons with Disabilities   

 20‐21 

 
20C‐0341. 

 
Acceptance of July 2020 Financial Report 
 

‐‐ 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0321. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Retail Space Lease Agreement Between the 
City of Galena and the Galena Cultural Arts Alliance for Space in the Market 
House Restroom Building 

 
22‐24  

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0342. 

  
First Reading of an Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of an Annexation 
Agreement with J. William Vincent and Robert Dickinson of Ramonalisa LLC for 
the Grant Hills Motel, 9372 US Route 20 West 

 
25‐44 

 
20C‐0343. 

  
First Reading of an Ordinance Annexing 3.5 Acres of Territory in East Galena 
Township, Commonly Known as the Grant Hills Motel, 9372 US Route 20 West 

 
45‐50 

 
20C‐0344. 

  
First Reading of an Ordinance to Rezone the Property at 9372 US Route 20 West, 
Commonly Known as the Grant Hills Motel, from Limited Agricultural to General 
Commercial  

 
51‐55 

 
20C‐0345. 

 
Warrants 

 
56‐62 

20C‐0346. Alderpersons’ Comments   
20C‐0347. City Administrator’s Report    
20C‐0348.  Mayor’s Report   
20C‐0349.  Motion for Executive Session Including:  

 Section 2 (c) (1) – Employee hiring, firing, compensation, discipline and 
performance 

 

20C‐0350.  Adjournment   

Page 4 of 62



Page 5 of 5 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  
 

 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  LOCATION 

Historic Preservation 
Commission 

Cancelled Until 
Further Notice 

    

Zoning Board of 
Appeals 

Wed. September 9  6:30 P.M. https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83502146579   

Meeting ID: 835 0214 6579 

City Council    Mon. September 14  6:30 P.M.  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88029348871  

 Meeting ID: 880 2934 8871 

 

Page 5 of 62



Regular Board Meeting  10 August 2020 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 10 AUGUST 2020 
 

20C-0309 – CALL TO ORDER 
  
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 10 August 2020.  
 
20C-0310 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call, the following members were present via Zoom teleconference:  Allendorf, 
Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Renner 
 
20C-0311 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
20C-0312 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
20C-0313 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
No reports.   
 
20C-0314 – CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
Jane Guill, 400 N. Dodge Street – City Clerk Hyde read a submitted comment.  Guill urged the 
Council to increase the vacation rental licenses in residential districts by another 10 units.   
 
J. M. Downey, resident – City Clerk Hyde read a submitted comment.  Downey urged the 
council to allow for more short-term rentals.  
 
William Grosshans, 418 Harrison – City Clerk Hyde read a submitted comment.  Grosshans 
urged the Council to rescind action taken on June 22 to allow for outdoor amplified music as 
conditions were violated.    
 
Catherine Kouzmanoff, 242 N. Main Street – Kouzmanoff urged the Council to consider 
keeping the outdoor amplified music.  She advised it was her understanding the music could go 
until 10 p.m. on Friday and Saturday which is what she was doing the entire time.  She advised 
she had a canopy come down in a storm which she believes may have caused the change.  That 
has since been resolved.  She feels we need to work together to resolve problems.  Kouzmanoff 
noted people are getting COVID indoors.  The spread of COVID is made worse with loud speech.  
Music indoors causes more loud speech indoors.  Kouzmanoff questioned if the sound has been 
investigated from the location of the person making the complaint.  She feels amplified speakers 
are no different than acoustic music as they are literally the same devices.  Since passing the 
temporary live music, no complaints were received until the weekend of July 31-August 1.  She 
advised all music was stopped after the second complaint.   
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 
Motion:    Hahn moved, seconded by Bernstein, to adjourn as the City Council and reconvene as 
the Liquor Commission.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 

Page 6 of 62



Regular Board Meeting  10 August 2020 
 

         
The motion carried.  

 
20C-0315 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A CORPORATION MANAGER 
LIQUOR LICENSE BY GLENN M. HARRIS FOR BLACKHAWK NO. 952, DBA FRATERNAL 
ORDER OF EAGLES, 235 S. MAIN STREET 
 
Motion:   Bernstein moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve a corporation manager liquor license 
by Glenn M. Harris for Blackhawk No. 952, DBA Fraternal Order of Eagles, 235 S. Main Street, 
20C-0315.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  McCoy 
         

The motion carried. 
 
20C-0316 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AN APPLICATION FOR A CLASS M. 
LIQUOR LICENSE BY CHRISTOPHER L. LARSON FOR LAMBERSON GUEST HOUSE, 113 
S. PROSPECT STREET 
 
Motion:   McCoy moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the application for a Class M 
liquor license by Christopher L. Larson for Lamberson Guest House, 113 S. Prospect Street, 
20C-0316.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
         

The motion carried.  
 
20C-0317 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AN APPLICATION FOR A CLASS D 
LIQUOR LICENSE BY SOPHIA A. JOHNSON AND TIMOTHY A. PFILE FOR CANNOVA’S 
GALENA, IL, LLC DBA CANNOVA’S PIZZERIA, 247 N. MAIN STREET 

 
Motion:   Allendorf moved, seconded by Kieffer, to approve the application for a Class D liquor 
license by Sophia A. Johnson (Pfile) and Timothy A. Pfile for Cannova’s Galena, IL, LLC DBA 
Cannova’s Pizzeria, 247 N. Main Street, 20C-0317.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
         

The motion carried. 
 
Motion:   Bernstein moved, seconded by Kieffer, to adjourn as the Liquor Commission and 
reconvene as the City Council.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
         

Page 7 of 62



Regular Board Meeting  10 August 2020 
 

The motion carried.  
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA20-15 
 
20C-0318 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
JULY 27, 2020 
 
20C-0319 – APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT BA21-04 FOR CORONAVIRUS 
PREVENTION MEASURES 
 
20C-0320 – ACCEPTANCE OF JUNE 2020 FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve Consent Agenda, CA-15.   
 
Discussion:  Westemeier recommended trying to get a billboard on each end of the county for 
coronavirus prevention.  Moran advised he will look at possibilities in East Dubuque and 
Stockton.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
         

The motion carried.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
20C-0321 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A RETAIL SPACE LEASE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND THE GALENA CULTURAL ARTS 
ALLIANCE FOR SPACE IN THE MARKET HOUSE RESTROOM BUILDING 
 
Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to table item 20C-0321 to the next meeting.   
 
20C-0322 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A REQUEST BY JUAN DORANTES 
TO ADD A CLASS A LIQUOR LICENSE FOR GALENA CONVENIENT LIQUOR STORE, INC., 
234 N. MAIN STREET 
 
Motion:  Westemeier moved, seconded by Hahn, to table the request by Juan Dorantes to add a 
Class A liquor license for Galena Convenient Liquor Store, Inc., 234 N. Main Street.   
 
20C-0323 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON NUMBER OF VACATION RENTAL 
LICENSES 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved seconded by Kieffer, to leave the number of vacation rental license as is 
until May 2021, 20C-0323.   
 
Discussion:  Allendorf questioned if there has been compliance or if there have been any 
enforcement issues.  Moran advised there were two or three compliance issues.  Those issues 
have been addressed.  Allendorf stated he would be interested to know if those with compliance 
issues are on the waiting list.   
 
McCoy feels it is unfair to not at least indicate whether or not we are going to expand the number 
in May.   
 
Hahn stated he would like to see it expanded; however, on the other had he doesn’t want to drive 
the motels and existing Bed and Breakfasts out of business.  He prefers to wait and see how 
things go.  Kieffer agreed.   
 

Page 8 of 62



Regular Board Meeting  10 August 2020 
 

 
Bernstein questioned if there was any data on how much business these Air B & B’s are doing.  
Are they full and are they attracting new clients?  If they are full that would put more rationale 
behind expanding.   
 
Westemeier voiced concern if we continue to let Air B & B’s in the downtown, we are running out 
of apartments for people who live and work in the downtown and have no car.  He also voiced 
concern with the parking issues.   
 
Allendorf feels there isn’t a lot of overlap between Bed and Breakfasts and Air B & B’s.  Allendorf 
recommended adding a parking tax to the Air B & B’s as an opportunity to create some type of 
revenue source on the Air B & B’s for parking.  Hahn stated he is open to the idea.  The City 
needs to do their homework to justify it and come up with ways to make it work.  Westemeier 
agreed. 
 
Kieffer advised he has received emails and phone calls from people with regard to parking.  The 
people who live on Bench Street can’t find a place to park.   
 
Bernstein feels this is an opportunity to address the parking problem in conjunction with 
expanding the number of units.  The City needs to explore possibilities before we can actually 
expand the number.   
 
Renner stated he is in favor of leaving the number the same and looking for ways to expand.  He 
prefers not to see a ton of them in residential areas.  The density measurement should help 
spread them out.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner  
  NAYS:  None  
            

The motion carried.  
 
20C-0324 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AMPLIFIED MUSIC ON APPROVED 
OUTDOOR PATIOS IN THE DOWNTOWN COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 
 
Motion:  Allendorf moved, seconded by Hahn, to reconsider amplified music on approved 
outdoor patios in the downtown commercial district.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner  
  NAYS:  McCoy 
            

The motion carried.  
 
Motion:  Allendorf moved, seconded by Westemeier, to rescind the approval of amplified music 
on approved outdoor patios in the downtown commercial districts, 20C-0324.   
 
Discussion:  Kieffer was in favor of doing away with the amplified music.  It was agreed when 
this was approved that if any complaints were received it would be taken away.  Allendorf agreed. 
 
McCoy stated he was still in favor of the amplified music for all the same reasons he originally 
supported it.  While there have been complaints, he believes they are doing everything they can 
to correct the problem.  McCoy feels the music adds to the ambience of the downtown.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Kieffer, Westemeier 
  NAYS:  Hahn, McCoy 
          

Page 9 of 62



Regular Board Meeting  10 August 2020 
 

The motion carried.  
 
20C-0325 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  McCoy moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the Warrants as presented, 20C-
325.  
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSTAIN:  Hahn 
    

The motion carried.  
 
20C-0326 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Thank you – Kieffer thanked Mark Moran for being at the meeting while on vacation!     
 
Adult Beverages Sign – Kieffer stated he saw a sign on a business in the downtown that said 
adult beverages to go.  He thought those beverages had to be consumed on the premises.  
Renner advised at one time the governor did allow bars to sell drinks to go.  He will check with 
Chief Huntington.   
 
COVID signage – Kieffer stated he likes the new signage for COVID. Bernstein agreed.  
 
Apology – Bernstein apologized for misquoting the number of COVID cases at the last meeting.   
 
Thank you – Westemeier thanked Mark Moran, the Downtown Business Association, Galena 
Chamber of Commerce, Galena Country Tourism and NW IL Economic Development for putting 
together the information on the coronavirus.  Westemeier stated he wishes more people would 
wear masks downtown when walking around.  The new signage will be great for store owners 
and the city.   
 
20C-0327 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS 
 
COVID-19 – Moran advised Jo Daviess County has been removed from the warning level as we 
are seeing a reduced number of cases.  Looking into the next week the numbers look even 
better.   
 
Thank you – Moran thanked the groups involved with the new COVID campaign.   
 
Annexation Agreement – Moran advised the annexation agreement and annexation ordinance 
for Grant Hills Motel will be on the next agenda.   
 
20C-0328 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner agreed with everything that was said.  Everyone has been kind of coming together 
to help with the problem.  He thanked all for their work.   
 
20C-0329 – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Allendorf moved, seconded by Westemeier, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner 

Page 10 of 62



Regular Board Meeting  10 August 2020 
 

  NAYS:  None 
       

The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 

Page 11 of 62



City of Galena, Illinois

Budget Amendment No. 21‐05  

Fiscal Year 2020‐21

Item No. Line Item Title Line Item No. Beginning Balance  Increase            Decrease     
Ending          

Balance

1 Other Professional Services (Sewer Fund) 52.43.549.00 $                                  1,000  $                                 29,500  $              30,500 

Justification:
Item No.    Description

1

Effect of Budget Amendment on Budget:

Approved Budget After Budget After
Budget Previous Amendments Proposed Amendment
2,974,070$           2,974,070$                           2,974,070$                            
3,408,030$           3,434,445$                           3,434,445$                            
(433,960)$             (460,375)$                             (460,375)$                              

5,837,135$           5,912,465$                           5,912,465$                            
6,078,170$           6,092,920$                           6,122,420$                            
(241,035)$             (180,455)$                             (209,955)$                              

(674,995)$              (640,830)$                              (670,330)$                              

Approved by City Council on ____________________

At the May 26 council meeting you reviewed a recommendation by City Engineer, Andy Lewis, to proceed with a professional study for removing phosphorus from the influent 

flow to the sewer plant. A contract with Strand Associates for $29,500 approved. This budget amendment adds the cost of the study to the Sewer Fund expense budget.

Mark Moran

Budget Officer

Fund
General Fund Revenues
General Fund Expenses

General Surplus/(Deficit)

Other Fund Revenues
Other Fund Expenses 

Other Fund Surplus/(Deficit)

Total Budget Surplus/(Deficit)

Page 12 of 62



City of Galena, Illinois

Summary of Budget Amendments

Fiscal Year 2020‐2021

Date Line Item Title Line Item No.
Beginning 

Balance
 Increase          Decrease

Ending         

Balance

Amendment 

Number 

Reference 

Number1

05‐11‐20 Rebuild Illinois Grant 15.389.2  $                        ‐    $           75,330   $           75,330  BA21‐01 1129

05‐11‐20 Rebuild Illinois Projects 15.41.850.01  $                        ‐     $                   ‐     $                   ‐    BA21‐01 NA

06‐08‐20 Equipment Replacement (Sewer Fund) 52.43.850.15  $                        ‐    $             4,590   $             4,590  BA21‐02 1290

06‐08‐20 Equipment Replacement (Sewer Fund) 52.43.850.15  $                  4,590   $             2,000   $             6,590  BA21‐02 1291

 

06‐08‐20 SCADA (Water Fund) 51.42.532.02  $             2,500.00   $             4,960   $             7,460  BA21‐02 1292

07‐27‐20 Computer Upgrade 01.46.830.01  $                        ‐    $             7,700   $             7,700  BA21‐03 1295

07‐27‐20 Equipment Replacement (Water) 51.42.852.00  $                        ‐    $             3,200   $             3,200  BA21‐03 1296

08‐10‐20 COVID Response  01.11.552.01  $                        ‐    $           18,715   $           18,715  BA21‐04 1297

08‐24‐20 Other Professional Services 52.43.549.00  $             1,000.00   $           29,500   $           30,500  BA21‐05

1  Reference Number confirms that the budget amendment has been updated to the General Ledger.

Updated: 8/19/2020

Page 13 of 62



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer   
 
DATE:      20 May 2020 
 
RE:      Phosphorus Removal Planning Report 

        Approval of Agreement     
     

 
Earlier this year we received the Illinois EPA National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit for the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP), which is valid for five years. This 
new permit included additional monitoring requirements, now including the need to conduct 
an optimization plan and feasibility study for removal of phosphorus from the influent. There 
are strict time limits on meeting these obligations. 
 
We were aware of this new requirement and had previously contacted our consultant Strand 
Associates, our designer for the plant who have been involved with other improvements over 
the years, primarily the Supervisory Control and Data System (SCADA). 
 
I attach an agreement from Strand Associates for conducting a phosphorus removal 
optimization plan and feasibility study for a not to exceed sum of $29,500. Unfortunately, this 
item was not included in the budget as we did not have a clear idea what the cost would be. We 
will therefore need to complete a budget amendment for this amount. City staff and our 
manager for US Water have reviewed the proposal and agree the description of the engineering 
services and estimated cost are justified and reasonable. 
 
I recommend the City Council approves the agreement with Strand Associates for $29,500 to 
conduct an optimization plan and feasibility study for phosphorus removal at the wastewater 
treatment plant.  

 

Page 14 of 62



Page 15 of 62



Page 16 of 62



Page 17 of 62



Page 18 of 62



Page 19 of 62



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    August 19, 2020 

RE:    Parking Space for Person with Disabilities  
 
 
Chief of Police, Lori Huntington, accepted the attached application for an on‐street parking 
space for persons with disabilities in front of 224 N. Bench Street. The space was requested by 
Robert Freund who lives at the address. Mr. Freund possesses a State of Illinois Persons with 
Disabilities Parking Placard and often finds it challenging to park near his property. He does not 
have off‐street parking on his property. The proposed space is highlighted on the image below. 
 

Image 1. Proposed Parking Space for Persons with Disabilities 
 

 
 
Chief Huntington recommends approving the parking space and posting the space with the 
appropriate sign.   
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions. 

 

Page 20 of 62



Page 21 of 62



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:   Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    August 19, 2020 

RE:    Galena Cultural Arts Alliance Lease 
 
At the August 10 meeting, you postponed action on the proposed lease agreement with the 
Galena Cultural Arts Alliance (GCAA) for the retail space in the Market House Restroom 
Building. You asked for additional information about the expenses the City incurs annually to 
operate the restrooms.  
 
Facilities Manager, Janelle Keeffer, assembled the expenses for the last three calendar years. 
Over the 2017‐2019 period, the average annual cost of operation was $11,550 as detailed in 
Table 1 blow.  
  

Table 1. Market House Restroom Expenses 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The costs do not include any allocation of our staff time for management of the space. Lawn 
care and snow removal were the responsibility of Galena Country Tourism in recent years and 
will now likely revert to the State of Illinois. The City does not pay itself for water and sewer 
use. The average annual water and sewer cost for the 2017‐2019 period was $2,450. 
 
When we have a lease that is agreeable to both GCAA and the city council, the lease would be 
forwarded to the Department of Natural Resources for final approval.  
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions or if you require any other information. 

 
1 As part of the franchise agreement with NICOR, the City receives a set amount free therms of gas for each of its building accounts. 
the average annual value of the free therms for the Market House Restroom Building was $260 for the 2017‐2019 calendar years.  

Expense  
Category

Average  
Annual Expense

Natural Gas1 $1,415

Custodian  $6,370

Restroom Supplies $3,765

TOTAL $11,550

 

Page 22 of 62



 1

 
RETAIL SPACE LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

  This  AGREEMENT,  hereinafter  referenced  as  “Agreement,”  is  entered  into  this  ____  day  of 
__________________, 2020, by and between the City of Galena, Illinois, an Illinois Municipal Corporation, 
hereinafter  referenced  as  “City,”  and  the  Galena  Cultural  Arts  Alliance,  Inc.,  an  Illinois  Not‐for‐Profit 
Corporation, hereinafter referenced as “Alliance,” and the parties, for good and valuable consideration as 
set forth herein, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, state as follows: 

 
1. Alliance  agrees  that  the  premises  referenced  in  this  Agreement  shall  be  the  retail  portion  on  the 

northwest end of  the Market House Restroom facility,  including  the retail area,  the hallway  from the 
retail area to the hallway door, and the storage area at the top of the stairway, located adjacent to the 
Old Market House State Historic Site, 123 North Commerce Street, Galena,  Illinois, and excluding  the 
restroom area and adjoining foyer to the rear thereof. 

 
2. The  parties  acknowledge  that  the  City  has  entered  into  an  Intergovernmental  Agreement,  executed 

June  20,  2019,  for  the  use  of  the  premises  described  herein with  the  State  of  Illinois,  acting  by  and 
through the Illinois Department of Natural Resources, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
are subject to the terms and conditions of said Intergovernmental Agreement. 
 

3. Alliance shall pay rent in the amount of ________________________________ ($_____.00) per month 
to  the  City  beginning  on  the  _____  day  of  __________,  2020  up  to  and  including  the  ______day  of 
__________, 2020 with this Agreement terminating on the last day of ___________, 2021.   

 
4. Alliance accepts the premises “As Is”.  Alliance agrees to return the premises to the City in a condition 

as good or better as when accepted by Alliance, ordinary wear and tear excepted. 
 

5. The City reserves the right to enter the premises occupied by Alliance at any reasonable time and the 
Police Department, the City of Galena Facilities Manager, and the City’s contract custodian shall have 
access to both a key for the premises and the code for the alarm.  Alliance shall be liable to the City for 
all expenses  incurred by  the City  for all work done by  the City  in order  to preserve and maintain  the 
premises when such work is the result of Alliance’s negligence or noncompliance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 

6. No volunteers of Alliance shall be employees of the City or be in any manner controlled by the City as 
employees.   

 
7. The City shall have complete control of the restroom portion of the building, but Alliance shall have a 

key to the door leading from the retail premises to the restroom area.  The door between the restroom 
area and  the  retail premises may be unlocked and open at  the discretion of  the Alliance at all  times 
when the exterior door to the restrooms is unlocked by the City or  its agent.   The City and  its agents 
shall possess  the key  for  the exterior door to the restrooms. Alliance volunteers working  in  the retail 
space will, if they become aware of a cleaning or maintenance issue that would prevent the safe use of 
the restroom, put an out‐of‐order sign on the restroom stall door or restroom door and contact the City 
of Galena Facilities Manager.  

 
 

Page 23 of 62



 2

8. The Alliance  shall  provide  an  inventory  of  any  furniture,  furnishings  and  equipment on  the premises 
belonging to Alliance. Said inventory shall be provided upon the effective date of this agreement. 
 

9. Alliance shall not enter into any construction projects of any kind on the premises without the written 
consent of the City.  Signs, posters, or other objects shall not be affixed to any of the walls or doors in 
the restrooms or in the hallway on the restrooms side of the hallway door unless attached to bulletin 
board(s) that may be provided by the City.  All signs on the interior or exterior of the building shall be 
subject to the approval of the City.  The existing Hello Galena pole sign adjacent to the sidewalk and the 
signs hanging from the northwest end of the building may remain in place.  The City retains the right to 
replace or modify signs on the exterior of the premises.   
 

10. The City shall be responsible for all utilities on the premises. 
 

11. Alliance  shall  comply  strictly  with  all  Federal,  State,  County  and  City  laws,  rules  and  regulations.  
Alliance further agrees not to permit nor suffer any noxious or offensive business, trade or occupation 
in  the  leased  area  and  not  to  permit  the  same  to  be  occupied  or  used  for  any  immoral  or  illegal 
purpose. 
 

12. Alliance shall maintain business liability insurance of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 
occurrence  to  protect  and  insure  all  its  property  and  volunteers,  and  the  City  shall  be  named  as  an 
additional insured on said policy.  Alliance shall hold the City harmless from any liability for any injury to 
persons  or  property  by  Alliance  or  its  volunteers.    Alliance  shall  provide  a  copy  of  said  insurance 
contract(s) and proof of payment therefore upon the effective date of this agreement and upon request 
by the City. 
 

13. Alliance  agrees  to  pay promptly  all  bills  arising  from and  related  to Alliance’s  operation of  the  retail 
facility and its activities therein. 
 

14. Alliance agrees that no person shall be denied or refused full and equal use of the accommodation and 
facilities, nor denied access to the leased area as the result of race, color, sex, creed, ethnic or national 
origin. 
 

15. This agreement shall renew automatically for an additional one‐year period(s) unless notice is provided 
to terminate the agreement within 30 days of the one‐year expiration.   

 
16. Alliance agrees that, should Alliance fail to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement or 

otherwise be in default hereunder, Alliance’s rights shall be terminated upon thirty (30) days of written 
notice to Alliance of such default.   This Agreement sets  forth the full agreement between the parties 
and may be changed or amended only in a written document signed by the parties. 
  

Signed at Galena, Illinois, this ______ day of ________________________, 2020. 
 
 
City of Galena, Illinois                            Galena Cultural Arts Alliance 
  
By: ____________________________             By: ____________________________ 
          Terry Renner, Mayor                                 Its President 
   

Page 24 of 62



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator  

DATE:    August 19, 2020 

RE:    Grant Hill Motel Annexation   
 
Grant Hills Motel owners, Bill Vincent and Robert Dickinson, have petitioned to annex the 3.5‐acre 
property to the City of Galena. The entire west side of the property is contiguous to the city limits 
making the property a candidate for annexation. Failing septic systems necessitated a recent 
emergency connection to the city sewer system. Three additional connections are required to replace 
all the septic systems. Our ordinance requires annexation when connecting to city sewer or water.  
 
An annexation agreement is proposed as part of the annexation. The agreement sets forth the 
conditions for annexation and the responsibilities of the parties. Some of the key provisions of the 
agreement include: 
 

 The City requires the property to connect to the public sewer system. 

 The City requires the property to connect to the public water system when the well is no longer 
viable.  

 The City agrees to zone the property General Commercial consistent with the current use of the 
property. 

 The City agrees to reduce the annexation fee from $350 to $200 in light of the pandemic. 

 The City agrees to reduce the zoning application fee from $500 to $200 in light of the pandemic. 

 The City agrees to reduce the fees for connecting to the public sewer from $4,800 to $1,200 in 
light of the pandemic and the emergency nature of the connections.  

 The applicant agrees to pay the usual and customary monthly service fees for sewer (and water 
if connected) and to comply with all City ordinances pertaining to the use of the property. 

 
At Monday’s council meeting, we will conduct the required public hearing on the annexation 
agreement. Following the hearing, you will be asked to consider action on the following three items: 
 

 Ordinance authorizing the execution of the annexation agreement 

 Ordinance annexing the property  

 Ordinance rezoning the property from Limited Agricultural (default district when annexed) to 
General Commercial 

  
If you are inclined to approve each item, I would request you consider waiving the second readings.  
Please feel free to contact me with any questions. Thank you.   

 

Page 25 of 62



 1

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A  
ANNEXATION AGREEMENT WITH RAMONALISA LLC FOR THE GRANT HILLS MOTEL 

 

 
WHEREAS,  it  is  in  the  best  interests  of  the  City  of  Galena,  Jo  Daviess  County, 

Illinois, that a certain annexation agreement pertaining to the land described below be 
entered into; and 
 

WHEREAS,  a  copy  of  such  agreement  is  attached  hereto  and  incorporated 
herein; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the  legal owner of  record of  the property  that  is  the subject of  the 
annexation  agreement  is  ready, willing  and  able  to  enter  into  that  agreement  and  to 
perform the obligations as required thereunder; and 
 

WHEREAS, the statutory procedures provided in Division 15.1 of Article 11 of the 
Illinois  Compiled  Statutes,  as  amended,  65  ILCS  5/11‐15.1,  for  the  execution  of  the 
annexation agreement have been fully complied with; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF GALENA, JO DAVIESS COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1: That the property covered by the Annexation Agreement is described 
in EXHIBIT A, and  

 
SECTION 2: That the Mayor be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute, 
and  the  City  Clerk  is  directed  to  attest,  a  document  known  as  “Annexation 
Agreement" (a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof), and 
 
SECTION 3:  The invalidity of any section part, provision, term or phrase of this 
Ordinance shall not affect the validity of the remainder hereof, and 
 
SECTION 4:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict or inconsistent with 
this Ordinance shall be repealed to the extent of any such conflict or 
inconsistency, and 
 
SECTION 5:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage; approval and publication as provided by law. 

 

Page 26 of 62



 2

SECTION III:  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law. 
 
  SECTION IV:  Passed and approved this _____ day of ___________, A.D., 2020. 
 
 
    AYES:          NAYS:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________   
Mayor, Terry Renner       
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________   
City Clerk, Mary Beth Hyde 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Joe Nack, City Attorney  
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL 61036 
 
Return to: 
Mark Moran 
City Administrator 
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL  6103  
 

Page 27 of 62



Exhibit A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
RAMONALISA LLC ANNEXATION 

GRANT HILLS MOTEL 
  

Of Property Currently Described As: Part of Lot 1 of "Grant Hills Motel Place" in Section 21, 
Township 28 North (T28N), Range 1 East (R1E) of the Fourth Principal Meridian (4th PM), East 
Galena Township, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, the boundary of said tract being more particularly 
described as follows:  
 
Commencing at the South Quarter corner of Section 21, Township 28 North (T28N), Range 1 
East (R1E) of the Fourth Principal Meridian (4th PM); thence North 01 degrees 11 minutes 40 
seconds West, 2013.97 feet to a point on the North line of Lot 1 of "Grant Hills Motel Place" in 
said Section 21, said point also being the Point of Beginning; thence North 81 degrees 57 
minutes 50 seconds East, along said North line, a distance of 330.19 feet; thence North 70 
degrees 15 minutes 40 seconds East, along said North line, a distance of 99.52 feet; thence 
North 78 degrees 17 minutes 10 seconds East, along said North line, a distance of 58.53 feet; 
thence South 04 degrees 22 minutes 00 seconds East, 273.12 feet to a point in the Centerline of 
U.S. Route No. 20; thence continuing Westerly, along said Centerline, being a circular curve 
concave to the North, an arc length of 564.73 feet, said curve having a radius of 1,910.08 feet, a 
central angle of 16 degrees 56 minutes 24 seconds, and whose long chord bears South 79 
degrees 14 minutes 17 seconds West, 562.66 feet from the last described course; thence North 
01 degrees 01 minutes 35 seconds West, 290.07 feet; thence South 86 degrees 01 minutes 15 
seconds East, 59.34 feet to the Point of Beginning;  
 
Containing 3.561 acres, more or less. 
 

Page 28 of 62



Exhibit B

Plat of AnnexationPage 29 of 62

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text
        Exhibit BPlat of Annexation

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text
Grant Hills Motel Parcel

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 

 

 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made on or as of the ______ day of ________________, 2020, by and 

between the CITY OF GALENA, an Illinois Municipal Corporation (the “City”) and RAMONALISA, an 

Illinois limited liability company, with its principal office located at 1480 Route 20 W, Elizabeth, IL 

61028 or its grantees, heirs, successors or assigns, (the “Owners”). 

 

RECITALS 

 A. The Owners hold title to or have an interest in the Property hereinafter more particularly 

described in “Exhibit A.” 

 B. Section 11-15.1-1 of the Illinois Municipal Code authorizes municipalities to enter into 

annexation agreements providing for the annexation of certain property upon the property becoming 

contiguous to the municipality.  

 C. On the _____ day of _________________, 2020, the Owners submitted a Petition for 

Annexation, including legal description and annexation plat, to annex the Property to the City of Galena.  

D. Owners propose to enter into an annexation agreement with the City for the Property and 

rezone the General Commercial District pursuant to authority granted by the City of Galena Zoning Board 

of Appeals and the Galena City Council.   

Page 30 of 62



  2

 E. Given the proximity of the Property to the City and the possible provision of City utilities to the 

Property, this development will have a far greater impact on the City than upon any other unit of local 

government having the authority to undertake regulation of those operations. 

 F. On the _____ day of ____________________, 2020, after duly published notice, the Zoning 

Board of Appeals of the City conducted a public hearing on Owner’s request for a rezoning from the 

Limited Agricultural district to the General Commercial District. Upon adjournment of the public hearing, 

the Zoning Board of Appeals of the City made recommendations regarding such items to the City Council 

of the City in the manner provided by law. Upon adjournment of the public hearing, the Zoning Board of 

Appeals made recommendations regarding such items to the City Council in the manner provided by law. 

 G. On the _____ day of _______________, 2020, after duly published notice, the City Council of 

the City conducted a public hearing on this Agreement in accordance with applicable law. 

 H. Performance by both the Owners and the City of their respective obligations under this 

Agreement is critical to the health, safety, and welfare of the general public, and to the enjoyment and use 

of property located in the vicinity of the Property. 

 I.  The City acknowledges the financial challenges created by COVID-19 restrictions on tourism 

and impacts on local businesses.  The City also recognizes the contribution the Owner’s business has 

made to the City of Galena and that the Owners have already installed and paid for the sewer pipe 

serving the property.  These factors are important considerations when calculating fees and costs. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and in consideration of the mutual 

covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the City and the Owners agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

INCORPORATION OF RECITALS AND EXHIBITS 

Page 31 of 62



  3

 1.1 Incorporation of Recitals.  The recitals herein above set forth are incorporated into and 

made a part of this Agreement. 

 1.2 Incorporation of Exhibits.  The exhibits attached hereto are incorporated into and made a 

part of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE II 

DEFINITIONS 

 2.1 Definitions.  As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meaning set forth 

opposite each of them except where the use or context clearly indicates that a different meaning is 

intended: 

  2.1.1 “Agreement” or “this Agreement” shall mean this Annexation Agreement between 

the City and the Owners. 

  2.1.2 “City” means the City of Galena, a municipal corporation organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of Illinois and located in Jo Daviess County, Illinois. 

  2.1.3 “County” means the County of Jo Daviess in the State of Illinois. 

  2.1.4 “Owners” means RAMONALISA, LLC, its grantees, heirs, successors or assigns. 

  2.1.5 “Property” means the real property legally described on “Exhibit A.” 

  2.1.6 “Zoning Code” means the City of Galena Zoning Ordinance found at Chapter 154 

of the City Code of the City. 

Page 32 of 62



  4

ARTICLE III 

ANNEXATION AND ZONING OF THE PROPERTY 

 3.1 Adoption of Ordinances Addressing Zoning Matters. No later than thirty (30) days after 

the adoption of this Agreement, the City shall, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, do 

all things necessary or appropriate to cause the City to adopt an ordinance for the purpose of establishing 

the zoning of the Property as General Commercial District.   

 3.2 Annexation of the Property. Within sixty (60) days after the adoption of this Annexation 

Agreement, the City shall, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, do all things necessary 

or appropriate to cause the Property to be annexed to the City and to comply with the provisions of this 

Agreement. In particular and without limitation, the City shall pass and approve an ordinance annexing 

the Property to the City, and prepare and serve any notices as may be required for any township road 

district, fire protection district or library district, as appropriate. The City shall record as necessary the 

ordinance annexing the Property and record or file any other documents as may be necessary to 

effectuate the terms of this Agreement. 

 3.3 Use of the Property Prior to Annexation. Until the City annexes the Property as provided in 

Section 3.3 of this Agreement, the City and Owners agree that the Property may be used in accordance 

with and consistent with the terms of this Agreement and with all ordinances of the City regarding such 

development in place at the time of the execution of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV 

ZONING 

 4.1 Zoning.  The City shall enact such ordinances, adopt such resolutions, and take such other 

actions as are necessary to zone the Property General Commercial District.   

 4.2 Highway Corridor Overlay Compliance.  Prior to the issuance of any City building permit, 

the Owner shall comply with the provisions of the Highway Corridor Overlay District as found in Zoning 

Page 33 of 62



  5

Code Section 154.303 for those portions of the Property to which the Corridor District applies. According 

to Section 154.922, a Non-Administrative Highway 20 Development permit shall be required. As a 

condition to the issuance of a permit in said District by the City, Owner shall be required to submit plans 

and obtain approval or waiver from the City with respect to the following: (a) the location of each 

proposed structure on the site, the number of stories and height thereof, gross floor area, and the location 

of entrances and exits to buildings; (b) the dimension and capacities of parking and loading areas, and 

the character and location of illumination facilities and landscaping for same shown on a dimensional 

drawing; and (c) the location and height of all walls, fences and screen plantings, landscaping and buffer 

areas.  City approval or waiver of the aforesaid after review by the Zoning Board of Appeals and approval 

by the City Council shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 4.3 Screening.  Pursuant to Zoning Code Section 154.301 and Section 154.923, Owners shall be 

required to provide City with the proposed location and screening of all onsite facilities for refuse 

collection, loading areas, outdoor storage areas and HVAC or other utility equipment prior to the issuance 

of a building permit for the construction of any improvements on the Property. 

 4.4 Site Plans.  Consistent with City of Galena Zoning Ordinance Section 154.914, site plans 

shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator and shall be reviewed and, if in compliance with City 

ordinances and this Agreement, approved by the City pursuant to the provisions found in Zoning Code 

Section 154.134 of the Galena Zoning Ordinance. 

 4.5 Materials to be Used.  All buildings shall be erected on the Property using a façade of brick, 

stone, brick veneer, stucco, wood or other similar materials, all subject to approval by the City. 

 4.6 Utilities.  Pursuant to City of Galena Subdivision Ordinance Section 153.42, all public utilities 

constructed in the Property shall be located within the street right-of-way or in easements dedicated for 

utility services.  All utilities constructed in the Property shall be located underground.  

4.7 Permits.  Prior to commencing construction of any buildings or development work, Owners 

shall at their sole cost and expense acquire any and all licenses or permits which may be required by 

Page 34 of 62



  6

applicable local ordinances of the City, as well as may be required by all county, state or federal statutes 

or regulations.   

ARTICLE V 

CODES AND ORDINANCES; FEES 

 5.1 Except where specifically limited or reserved by this Agreement, to the extent of any conflict, 

ambiguity or inconsistency between the terms, provisions or standards contained in this Agreement and 

the terms, provisions or standards, either presently existing or hereafter adopted, by the City of Galena 

Code of Ordinances, the City of Galena Zoning Ordinance, the City of Galena Storm Water Detention 

Ordinance, and the City of Galena Subdivision Ordinance, or any other City code, ordinance or 

regulation, the terms, provisions and standards of this Agreement shall control and govern during the 

term of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any City code, ordinance or regulation is 

hereafter adopted, amended or interpreted so as to be less restrictive upon the Owners with respect to 

the development of the Property, than is the case under the existing law, then at the option of the 

Owners, such less restrictive amendment or interpretation shall control during the term of this Agreement. 

 5.2 No fee or charge of any description shall be imposed upon the Owner or upon the 

development and use of the Property, unless, as of the date of this Agreement, such fee or charge is in 

existence and being collected by the City on fair and rational basis from all Owners, users and owners of 

property within the City, based on considerations of the type of project, the impact on the City’s 

infrastructure and enhancement of City revenue. 

 5.3  In that regard, the Grant Hills Motel has provided reasonably priced accommodations to 

Galena tourists and visitors for many years.  As a result of the motel’s continuing operation, Owners have 

contributed significant sums of hotel/motel taxes benefitting the City and County.    

 5.4  In recognition of the business’ contribution to the project and the circumstances necessitating 

this project, the City agrees to accept $200.00 for the annexation petition and $200.00 for the rezoning 

application. 

Page 35 of 62



  7

ARTICLE VI 

SANITARY SEWER SERVICE 

6.1 The City represents and warrants that it owns, operates, and maintains a sanitary sewage 

collection, treatment, and disposal system within its borders, but not contiguous to or abutting the 

Property.  All buildings on the property that are required by building code to have sanitary sewer facilities 

shall be connected to the public sewer system and shall not be permitted to utilize septic treatment or 

other alternative treatment or containment systems. The City warrants that the sanitary sewer system 

owned and operated by the City has sufficient capacity and functionality to serve the Property as currently 

developed.  

6.2 Subject to the limitations set forth herein, the Owners shall have the right to connect to and 

use such sanitary sewer system and mains. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, Owners shall 

pay to the City all permit, tap-on and inspection fees based on the fee schedule in place at the time of 

permit application.  

 6.3 The Owners shall be responsible for obtaining any and all permissions, easements, or 

property necessary to install the sanitary sewer system needed to serve the Property. The City does not 

guarantee sufficient public right-of-way or public property to install sanitary sewer service outside of the 

Property. Any and all costs incurred by the City in assisting Owners in obtaining permits, easements, 

completion of the engineering study and any other assistance including, but not limited to City staff time, 

additional engineering and other professional costs as well as reasonable attorney fees, all as reasonably 

identified by the City, shall be reimbursed in full to the City by Owners prior to authorization to connect 

either to the existing sewer system or any extension or expansion thereof accomplished by Owners or the 

City pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The parties have agreed that the four sewer connection 

fees shall total $1,200.00.  City shall without cost to the City and to the extent reasonably possible, assist 

Owners in procuring easements or acquiring property interests necessary to extend the sanitary sewer 

from its current terminus to the boundary of the Property in order to effect the provision of sanitary service 

Page 36 of 62



  8

to the Property. All such work will be done in accordance with plans provided in said engineering study 

and approved by the City Engineer. 

ARTICLE VII 

  POTABLE WATER SERVICE 

7.1 The City represents and warrants that it owns, operates, and maintains a potable water 

supply and distribution system within its borders. All buildings on the property that are required by building 

code to have potable water service shall be connected to the public water system not later than the date 

that the private well or water system is no longer viable or a new well or private water system is needed.  

Viability will be defined by the failure of the existing well to provide potable water to the Property.  The 

City does not warrant, guarantee or agree that the potable water system owned and operated by the City 

has sufficient capacity, pressure or functionality to serve the Property or any development thereof.    

7.2 Subject to the limitations set forth herein, the Owners shall have the right to connect to and 

use such potable water supply system.  Prior to the issuance of any building permits, Owners shall pay to 

the City all permit, tap-on and inspection fees negotiated between the Owners and the City.  

7.3 The Owners shall be responsible for obtaining any and all permissions, easements, or 

property necessary to install the potable water system needed to serve the Property. The City does not 

guarantee sufficient public right-of-way or public property to install water service outside of the Property.  

Any and all costs incurred by the City in assisting Owners in obtaining permits, easements, completion of 

the engineering study and any other assistance including, but not limited to City staff time, additional 

engineering and other professional costs as well as reasonable attorney fees, all as reasonably identified 

by the City, shall be reimbursed in full to the City by Owners prior to authorization to connect either to the 

existing potable water system or improvement to, extension or expansion thereof accomplished by 

Owners or the City pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Such action to complete such extension of 

the potable water main or mains shall be taken no later than the date water service is required for 

occupancy of the improvements to be serviced by said water main extension and constructed on the 

Property. City shall, without cost to the City and to the extent reasonably possible, assist Owners in 

Page 37 of 62



  9

procuring easements or acquiring property interests necessary to extend the potable water from its 

current terminus to the boundary of the Property in order to effect the provision of potable water service to 

the Property.  All such work will be done in accordance with plans provided in said engineering study and 

approved by the City Engineer. Water within the Property shall be extended only with Illinois 

Environmental Protection Agency approval and only pursuant to permits from the City. 

ARTICLE XIII 

STORM DRAINAGE 

 8.1 Owners shall be responsible for providing all necessary storm sewers, detention systems and 

compensatory storage for any new construction on the Property in compliance with the City of Galena 

Storm Water Detention Ordinance as amended, the existing City of Galena Flood Plain Ordinance and all 

other applicable laws and regulations, as modified or amended pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS REGARDING INFRASTRUCTURE 

 9.1  All public infrastructure including, but not limited to, sanitary sewer system, potable water 

system, storm drainage system and streets shall be installed on the Property consistent with all City 

ordinances, specifications, rules, regulations and the terms of this Agreement and same shall be subject 

to inspection and testing by appropriate officials of the City prior to the required dedication to and 

acceptance of same by the City. Prior to the City accepting dedication of any public infrastructure, said 

professional engineer shall provide the City with a report confirming all public infrastructure is installed in 

accordance with City approved plans and specifications.  

 9.2 Prior to taking any action with regard to installation of any such public infrastructure systems, 

Owners shall provide at least twenty-four (24) hour advance notice to the City that such work is about to 

commence. Failure to provide such notice prior to the beginning of any such work shall be a breach of 

Page 38 of 62



  10

this Agreement and shall subject the Owners to possible stop work order(s) of a temporary or permanent 

nature as the City may determine to be appropriate under the circumstance.    

9.3 Owners acknowledge and agree that no public infrastructure shall be approved or accepted 

by the City nor will any building permits be issued without the delivery to the City by Owners of “As Built” 

plans and/or drawings of all such public infrastructure installations in both paper and electronic form 

compatible with the Jo Daviess County Geographic Information System (GIS) or any similar system used 

by Jo Daviess County at the time of submission of same. 

9.4 Prior to acceptance of any dedication of any public infrastructure by the City, Owners shall 

provide to the City copies of all recorded easements needed for such public infrastructure. Owners agree 

that all such easements shall not be created nor recorded without prior City Attorney acceptance and 

approval of the language, terms and descriptions set forth therein. All such easements shall reference that 

maintenance and repairs of said public infrastructure shall be completed by Owners prior to acceptance of 

same by the City under the terms of this Agreement. 

9.5 Owners shall warrant all infrastructure accepted by the City for a period of one year 

commencing on the date of acceptance of the infrastructure by ordinance. During the warranty period, 

Owners shall be responsible for all repairs necessary to maintain the public infrastructure free from defects 

or damage and in the same condition as at the date of acceptance.  

ARTICLE X 

TERM 

 10.1 This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their respective grantees, heirs, 

successors and assigns for twenty (20) years, commencing as of the date hereof, and for such further 

term as may hereinafter be authorized by statute and by City ordinance. If any of the terms of this 

Agreement, or the annexation or zoning of the Property, is challenged in any court proceeding, then, to 

the extent permitted by law, the period of time during which such litigation is pending shall be included in 

calculating said twenty (20) year period.  

Page 39 of 62



  11

ARTICLE XI 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 11.1 Breach and Opportunity to Cure. Before any failure of any party to this Agreement to 

perform its obligations under this Agreement shall be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement, the party 

claiming such failure shall notify in writing the party alleged to have failed to perform of the alleged failure 

and shall demand performance. No breach of this Agreement may be found to have occurred if 

performance is completed to the reasonable satisfaction of the complaining party within thirty (30) days 

after receipt of such notice, or in the case of a failure which by its nature takes in excess of thirty (30) 

days to cure, such longer period of time as may be reasonably necessary to cure the same provided that 

the curing party is pursuing said cure with due diligence. 

 

 11.2 Enforcement. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be specifically enforceable 

by the parties hereto. In the event of litigation initiated by either party for the purpose of seeking 

enforcement of this Agreement, the Court shall award reasonable attorneys fees and costs to the 

prevailing party, whether such fees are incurred for purposes of negotiation, trial or appellate practice. A 

party will be deemed to have prevailed if it obtains a judgment or settlement which substantially provides 

the relief sought by such party as determined by the Court. 

 11.3 Amendment. This Agreement and any exhibits attached hereto may be amended only by 

the mutual consent of the parties including in the case of the City, by the adoption of an ordinance or 

resolution of the City approving said amendment as provided by law, and by the execution of said 

amendment by the parties or their successors in interest. Any language of this section which is 

inconsistent with Illinois law at the time such language is being construed regarding amendment of 

annexation agreements is hereby agreed by the parties as void. 

Page 40 of 62



  12

 11.4 No Other Agreements. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement 

supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations, and discussions relative to the subject matter hereof and 

fully integrates the agreement of the parties. 

 11.5 Binding on Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 

the parties hereto and their respective grantees, heirs, successors and permitted assigns. 

 11.6 Consent. Except as otherwise provided herein, whenever consent or approval of either 

party is required, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or unduly delayed. 

 11.7 Paragraph Headings. Paragraph headings and references are for the convenience of the 

parties and are not intended to limit, vary, define or expand the terms and provisions contained in this 

Agreement and shall not be used to interpret or construe the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 

 11.8 Severability. If any provision, covenant or portion of this Agreement or its application to any 

person, entity or property is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the application or validity of any 

other provisions, covenants or portions of this Agreement (and to that end, any provisions, covenants or 

portion of this Agreement are declared to be severable). 

 11.9 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws and 

decisions of the State of Illinois. 

 11.10 Notices.  All notices herein shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be effective as of the 

date of actual delivery if by personal delivery or as of the third day from and including the day of posting if 

mailed by certified or registered mail return receipt requested with postage prepaid: 

To the City:          City of Galena 
            Attention:  City Administrator  
            101 Green Street 
            Galena, IL  61036 
 
 
with a copy to:          City Attorney 
            101 Green Street 
            Galena, IL 61036   
             

Page 41 of 62



  13

To Owners:           RAMONALISA, LLC 
c/o James W. Vincent and Robert Dickinson 

            1480 Route 20 West 
            Elizabeth, IL 61028   
 
with a copy to:          Michael Toepfer 
            Vincent, Roth, Toepfer & Leinen, P.C. 
            11406 Route 20 West, P.O. Box 6346 
            Galena, IL 61036 
 
 

or to such replacement parties as may from time to time be identified by written notice. 

 13.12 Mutual Assistance. Subject to provisions of this Agreement requiring payment for or 

reimbursement to the City for costs by Owners, the City and Owners shall do all things necessary or 

appropriate to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and assist each other in 

carrying out the terms and objectives of this Agreement and the intentions of the Parties as reflected by 

said terms, including, without limitation, the giving of such notices, the holding of such public hearings, the 

enactment by the City of such resolutions and ordinances and the taking of such other actions as may be 

necessary to enable the City’s and Owners compliance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement 

and as may be necessary to give effect to the terms and objectives of this Agreement and the intentions 

of the parties as reflected by said terms. This process shall proceed in a manner where there shall be no 

costs to the City. 

 

THE BALANCE OF THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

 

 

 

Page 42 of 62



  14

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Owners have caused this Annexation Agreement to be 

executed effective as of the day and  

year first above written. 

 

CITY OF GALENA:     OWNERS: 

BY:  _______________________  BY: ___________________________      
Mayor      James W. Vincent,  Manager 

 

ATTEST:     ATTEST:  _________________________       

____________________________     
Its City Clerk  
 

BY:  ____________________________   
                    Robert Dickinson, Manager     

         

      ATTEST:  _________________________ 

 

      

Page 43 of 62



  15

STATE OF ILLINOIS   ) 
                   ) ss. 
JO DAVIESS COUNTY    ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by Terry Renner, City Mayor, and Mary 
Beth Hyde, City Clerk, this ______ day of __________________, 2020. 

 
              _____________________________ 
                Notary Public 
STATE OF ILLINOIS  ) 
                     ) ss. 
JO DAVIESS COUNTY  ) 
 

  I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, Do Hereby 
Certify that JAMES W. VINCENT, personally known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed 
to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that he signed, sealed 
and delivered the said instrument as his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 

 Given under my hand and Notarial Seal this _____ day of _____________, 2020. 

 
            __________________________________ 
                             Notary Public   
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS   ) 
                       )ss. 
JO DAVIESS COUNTY    ) 
 

 I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, Do Hereby Certify 
that ROBERT DICKINSON, personally known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that he signed, sealed and 
delivered the said instrument as his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes therein set forth. 

 

 Given under my hand and seal this _______ day of _______________, 2020. 

 

 

            ______________________________________ 
                  Notary Public 
Joseph Nack 
City Attorney 
City of Galena  
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL 61036 
815/777‐1050 
  

Page 44 of 62



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________  
 

ORDINANCE ANNEXING 3.5 ACRES OF TERRITORY IN EAST GALENA TOWNSHIP 
________________________________________________________________________  

 
  WHEREAS, a written Petition (marked as Exhibit C and made a part of this 
Ordinance), signed by J. William Vincent and Robert Dickinson for Ramonalisa LLC, 
(“Owner”), the Owner of territory hereinafter described, has been filed with the City 
Clerk of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, requesting that said territory be 
annexed to the City of Galena; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the are no (0) electors residing within the said territory; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the said territory is not within the corporate limits of any 
municipality, but is contiguous to the City of Galena; and 
 
  WHEREAS, in accordance with the Illinois Compiled Statutes (65 ILCS 5/7), legal 
notices regarding the intention of the City to annex said territory have been sent to all 
public bodies required to receive such notice; and 
 
  WHEREAS, copies of such notices required to be recorded, if any, have been 
placed as record in the office of the Recorder of Deeds of Jo Daviess County; and 
 
  WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Galena that said territory be 
annexed hereto. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois as follows: 
 
  SECTION I:  That the following described territory legally described as Exhibit A, 
made a part of this Ordinance, is hereby annexed to the City of Galena, Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois, and that the boundary lines of Galena be and are hereby enlarged and 
extended to include, within the corporate boundaries thereof, the territory above 

Page 45 of 62



described and as shown in the Plat of Annexation (marked as Exhibit B and made a part 
of this Ordinance).   
   

SECTION II:  That the City Clerk is hereby directed to record with the Recorder 
and to file with the County Clerk, a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with an 
accurate map of the territory annexed. 
 
  SECTION III:  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law. 
 
  SECTION IV:  Passed and approved this _____ day of ___________, A.D., 2020. 
 
 
    AYES:          NAYS:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________   
Mayor, Terry Renner       
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________   
City Clerk, Mary Beth Hyde 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Joe Nack, City Attorney  
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL 61036 
 
Return to: 
Mark Moran 
City Administrator 
101 Green Street 
Galena, IL  6103  

Page 46 of 62



Exhibit A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
RAMONALISA LLC ANNEXATION 

GRANT HILLS MOTEL 
  

Of Property Currently Described As: Part of Lot 1 of "Grant Hills Motel Place" in Section 21, 
Township 28 North (T28N), Range 1 East (R1E) of the Fourth Principal Meridian (4th PM), East 
Galena Township, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, the boundary of said tract being more particularly 
described as follows:  
 
Commencing at the South Quarter corner of Section 21, Township 28 North (T28N), Range 1 
East (R1E) of the Fourth Principal Meridian (4th PM); thence North 01 degrees 11 minutes 40 
seconds West, 2013.97 feet to a point on the North line of Lot 1 of "Grant Hills Motel Place" in 
said Section 21, said point also being the Point of Beginning; thence North 81 degrees 57 
minutes 50 seconds East, along said North line, a distance of 330.19 feet; thence North 70 
degrees 15 minutes 40 seconds East, along said North line, a distance of 99.52 feet; thence 
North 78 degrees 17 minutes 10 seconds East, along said North line, a distance of 58.53 feet; 
thence South 04 degrees 22 minutes 00 seconds East, 273.12 feet to a point in the Centerline of 
U.S. Route No. 20; thence continuing Westerly, along said Centerline, being a circular curve 
concave to the North, an arc length of 564.73 feet, said curve having a radius of 1,910.08 feet, a 
central angle of 16 degrees 56 minutes 24 seconds, and whose long chord bears South 79 
degrees 14 minutes 17 seconds West, 562.66 feet from the last described course; thence North 
01 degrees 01 minutes 35 seconds West, 290.07 feet; thence South 86 degrees 01 minutes 15 
seconds East, 59.34 feet to the Point of Beginning;  
 
Containing 3.561 acres, more or less. 
 

Page 47 of 62



Exhibit B

Plat of AnnexationPage 48 of 62

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text
        Exhibit BPlat of Annexation

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text
Grant Hills Motel Parcel

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text



Page 49 of 62

mmoran
Typewritten Text
Exhibit C

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text



Exhibit A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
RAMONALISA LLC ANNEXATION 

GRANT HILLS MOTEL 
  

Of Property Currently Described As: Part of Lot 1 of "Grant Hills Motel Place" in Section 21, 
Township 28 North (T28N), Range 1 East (R1E) of the Fourth Principal Meridian (4th PM), East 
Galena Township, Jo Daviess County, Illinois, the boundary of said tract being more particularly 
described as follows:  
 
Commencing at the South Quarter corner of Section 21, Township 28 North (T28N), Range 1 
East (R1E) of the Fourth Principal Meridian (4th PM); thence North 01 degrees 11 minutes 40 
seconds West, 2013.97 feet to a point on the North line of Lot 1 of "Grant Hills Motel Place" in 
said Section 21, said point also being the Point of Beginning; thence North 81 degrees 57 
minutes 50 seconds East, along said North line, a distance of 330.19 feet; thence North 70 
degrees 15 minutes 40 seconds East, along said North line, a distance of 99.52 feet; thence 
North 78 degrees 17 minutes 10 seconds East, along said North line, a distance of 58.53 feet; 
thence South 04 degrees 22 minutes 00 seconds East, 273.12 feet to a point in the Centerline of 
U.S. Route No. 20; thence continuing Westerly, along said Centerline, being a circular curve 
concave to the North, an arc length of 564.73 feet, said curve having a radius of 1,910.08 feet, a 
central angle of 16 degrees 56 minutes 24 seconds, and whose long chord bears South 79 
degrees 14 minutes 17 seconds West, 562.66 feet from the last described course; thence North 
01 degrees 01 minutes 35 seconds West, 290.07 feet; thence South 86 degrees 01 minutes 15 
seconds East, 59.34 feet to the Point of Beginning;  
 
Containing 3.561 acres, more or less. 
 

Page 50 of 62



Cal. No. 20A-03 1 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 

DETERMINATION & RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

 
REGARDING 

 
CALENDAR NUMBER:  Cal. No. 20A-03 
 
APPLICATION BY: Applicant & Owner:  Ramonalisa, LLC, 9372 US Route 20 W, 

Galena, IL 61036 
 
FOR: Request for Map Amendment to rezone from Limited Agriculture 

to General Commercial district upon annexation into the City of 
Galena. 

PROCEDURES 
 
Pursuant to law, a public hearing was held by the Galena Zoning Board of Appeals regarding this matter 
on August 12, 2020.  The hearing was advertised in an edition of the Galena Gazette, in a quarter-page 
sized ad, that was available to the general public between 15 and 30 days prior to the hearing.  They were 
invited to testify if they so desired.  A quorum of the Board was present at the hearing in which the subject 
application and materials were reviewed, and all persons were heard who desired to testify. 
 
NATURE OF APPLICATION 
 
The applicant is requesting a Map Amendment to rezone the property at 9372 US Route 20 West from 
Limited Agriculture to General Commercial district as part of their annexation into the City of Galena. 
 
The current use of the property is a 33-room motel and also has an outdoor display sales and service U-
Haul business.  The appropriate district to make these uses compliant is General Commercial district.  It is 
between the Blaum Bros. Distillery and First Galena Corporation, which are also zoned as General 
Commercial; this will match surrounding zoning districts. 
 
No alterations to the site or structures are planned; the property will annex as-is. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this request.  Land uses surrounding the property include agriculture, 
commercial and residential. 
 
At their meeting on August 12th, the ZBA recommended approval to the City Council for this request. 
 
 
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND/OR OBJECTIONS 
 
Testimony presented in favor of the request: 
 
§ Bill Vincent, 8 Arrowwood Drive, Galena, said earlier this year his septic system failed.  He went to 

the County Health Department to get a permit but was told he would need to tie-into the city sewer.   
 

Rosenthal asked if it was because he didn’t have enough room for a new septic. 
 

Page 51 of 62



Cal. No. 20A-03 2 
 

Vincent said legally it was not possible for him to install a new septic because he was within 150 feet 
of the city sewer.     

 
Rosenthal asked Nack and Oldenburg if that was true.   

 
Nack said it was.   

 
Oldenburg said if a property is within 1000 feet commercially of city sewer service you are required 
to tie-in per State, County and City statute.  Additionally, the city requires you to annex if you are 
adjacent to corporate boundaries. 

 
Nybo asked if this property was on city water.   

 
Oldenburg said it is not.  They are allowed to continue using their private well but if it fails, they will 
need to connect to the 12” main that is near the property.   

 
Testimony presented in opposition to the request 

 
No one spoke in opposition to the request. 
 
APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
§ Article 0, Section 154.005 through 154.008 sets forth the Purpose, Separability and  

Non-Liability, Abrogation and Rules of Interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance. 
§ Article 2, Section 154.201(A)(1) provides a definition and description of the Limited Agricultural 

District. 
§ Article 2, Section 154.201(C)(5) provides a definition and description of the General Commercial 

District. 
§ Article 2, Table 154.204.1 lists the Bulk Standards for Nonresidential Structures. 
§ Article 2, Table 154.208.1 lists the Intensity Standards for Nonresidential uses. 
§ Article 4, Table 154.403.1 lists the land uses permitted by right or by special uses for each zoning 

district. 
§ Article 6, Section 154.601 sets forth the off-street parking standards. 
§ Article 6, Section 154.605 sets forth the landscape and buffer yard standards. 
§ Article 9, Section 154.918 and Table 154.918.1 set forth the procedure for Required Non-

Administrative Development Review. 
§ Article 9, Section 154.919 lists and describes the Non-Administrative Development Review Common 

Elements of Procedure. 
§ Article 9, Section 154.920 sets forth the purpose, applicability, approval criteria, decision-maker, and 

application and review procedures for Rezoning. 
 
DETERMINATION 
 
Based upon the facts in this case, the Zoning Board of Appeals does find and conclude that the request by 
Ramonalisa, LLC for a Map Amendment as described above should be approved for the following reasons: 

(1)     Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption;  N/A 

Page 52 of 62



Cal. No. 20A-03 3 
 

(2)     Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due to 
installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, development 
transitions, etc.; This is applicable. 

(3)     Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining 
characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts on the capacity or 
safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking problems, or environmental 
impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive storm water runoff, water, air or noise 
pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, or other nuisances;  This is compatible with defining 
characteristics of the proposed district. 

(4)     Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the implementation of 
the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and the policies, intents and 
requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines;  This amendment is in conformance 
with the Comprehensive Plan. 

(5)     Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made available 
concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone; There are adequate public 
facilities and services available. 

(6)     Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or  There is an adequate 
supply of land available.. 

(7)     Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be 
benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning.  There is a need for 
accommodations in the community. 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that this Zoning Board of Appeals does recommend to the City 
Council of the City of Galena that this request by Ramonalisa, LLC for a Map Amendment as described 
above should be approved as proposed. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of August, A.D. 2020, by the Galena Zoning Board of Appeals 
by a vote of 5 ayes, 0 nays, 2 absent, 0 abstain, 0 recused. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      John Rosenthal, Chairperson 

Page 53 of 62



� ��� ��� ��� ��� ���

)HHW

/HJHQG

����B865W��:

%XLOGLQJV

&RUSRUDWH�%RXQGDU\

*&�'LVWULFW

/$�'LVWULFW

3&�'LVWUFW

0'5�'LVWULFW

Page 54 of 62



 Ordinance #O‐20‐___   
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

______________________________________________________________________   
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois as 
follows: 
 
SECTION I:   The official Zoning Map of the City of Galena shall hereby be amended to 
change the zoning on approximately 3.5 acres, Parcel: 06‐000‐167‐00, Part of Lot 1, Grant 
Hills Motel Place,  S21, T28N, R1E of  the Fourth Principle Meridian, Galena,  Jo Daviess 
County, Illinois, from Limited Agricultural district to General Commercial district.   
 
SECTION II:  All  other  provisions  of  the  Zoning Ordinance  and  the  Zoning Map  shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION III:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION IV:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon adoption. 
 
SECTION V:  Passed on this __th day of ________________, A.D. 2020, in open Council. 
 
 
AYES:              NAYS: 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________                                   ____________________________   
Terry Renner, Mayor          Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

Page 55 of 62



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 8/11/2020 - 8/31/2020 Aug 20, 2020  11:51AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ACCESS SYSTEMS (120783)
900890 1 Invoice COPIER MAINTENANCE 08/03/2020 62.75 22.22.512.00

Total ACCESS SYSTEMS (120783): 62.75

ACCESS SYSTEMS LEASING (120766)
27643709 1 Invoice COPIES MADE 08/19/2020 303.53 01.13.579.00
27643709 2 Invoice KIP 08/19/2020 249.51 52.43.549.00

Total ACCESS SYSTEMS LEASING (120766): 553.04

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
081520 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/PHONE 08/15/2020 53.71 01.41.552.00
081520 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/PHO 08/15/2020 49.94 22.22.552.00
081520 3 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 08/15/2020 256.26 01.21.552.00
081520 4 Invoice FINANCE/PHONE 08/15/2020 370.75 01.13.552.00
081520 5 Invoice FLOOD CONTROL/PHON 08/15/2020 49.74 20.25.515.00
081520 6 Invoice FINANCE/PHONE 08/15/2020 47.30 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 827.70

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
081520 1 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 08/15/2020 11.31 01.21.552.00
081520 2 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  08/15/2020 71.64 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 82.95

BARD MATERIALS CENTRAL REGION (119788)
427526 1 Invoice MISC. PROJECTS 08/08/2020 585.00 01.41.614.05

Total BARD MATERIALS CENTRAL REGION (119788): 585.00

CAMERON, KATHY (120227)
081920 1 Invoice GUEST HOUSE LICENSE  08/19/2020 130.00 01.11.912.00

Total CAMERON, KATHY (120227): 130.00

CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840)
081520 1 Invoice CREATIVE CLOUD 08/15/2020 22.30 01.16.684.00
081520 2 Invoice RENTLY 08/15/2020 60.00 58.54.532.00
081520 3 Invoice BACKUP SERVICES 08/15/2020 279.00 01.13.512.04
081520 4 Invoice ADOBE/BUILDING 08/15/2020 15.93 01.13.512.04
081520 5 Invoice HAND SANITIZER 08/15/2020 24.95 01.11.552.01
081520 6 Invoice TOOLS 08/15/2020 9.99 01.13.651.02
081520 7 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 08/15/2020 53.57 01.41.652.00
081520 8 Invoice WEED CONTROL 08/15/2020 345.06 17.52.511.04
081520 9 Invoice GRANT PARK MAPS 08/15/2020 958.00 17.52.820.06
081520 10 Invoice HUMIDITY MONITOR 08/15/2020 49.98 58.54.511.00

Total CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840): 1,818.78

COMELEC SERVICES INC. (244)
0472055 1 Invoice NEW ANTENNA 07/07/2020 142.00 22.22.652.00

Page 56 of 62



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 8/11/2020 - 8/31/2020 Aug 20, 2020  11:51AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total COMELEC SERVICES INC. (244): 142.00

DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INS. CO (119500)
080120 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE LIFE INSURA 08/01/2020 529.74 01.13.452.00

Total DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INS. CO (119500): 529.74

DMASWA (120782)
882436 1 Invoice GLASS RECYCLING 07/01/2020 99.30 13.44.540.06
889969 1 Invoice GLASS RECYCLING 08/18/2020 147.90 13.44.540.06

Total DMASWA (120782): 247.20

EJ EQUIPMENT, INC. (119950)
P24554 1 Invoice SWEEPER 08/06/2020 758.10 01.41.613.11

Total EJ EQUIPMENT, INC. (119950): 758.10

EUCLID MANAGERS (120626)
081120 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE DENTAL #564 08/11/2020 1,811.66 01.13.451.01

Total EUCLID MANAGERS (120626): 1,811.66

FINNIN KIA (120864)
5020268 1 Invoice NEW BATTERY 07/01/2020 152.13 22.22.613.00

Total FINNIN KIA (120864): 152.13

FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045)
7381 1 Invoice EMERGENCY SIREN INS 08/08/2020 3,594.00 12.10.890.00
7382 1 Invoice ST. LIGHT MAINTENANCE 08/08/2020 200.00 12.10.512.00
7382 2 Invoice ST. LIGHT MAINTENANCE 08/08/2020 717.00 01.41.514.11

Total FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045): 4,511.00

FOLEY'S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. (119917)
14658 1 Invoice MISC. 08/04/2020 21.48 17.52.652.00

Total FOLEY'S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. (119917): 21.48

GALENA ARC (850)
081420 1 Invoice HAHN COUNCIL SALARY  08/14/2020 100.00 01.11.432.00
081920 1 Invoice ARC AGREEMENT 08/19/2020 10,000.00 01.11.929.06

Total GALENA ARC (850): 10,100.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
7122 1 Invoice ANNEXATION NOTICE 08/05/2020 57.75 01.16.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 57.75

GLOBAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC. (120441)
116406175 1 Invoice FACE MASKS FOR BUSIN 08/12/2020 3,996.00 01.11.552.01

Page 57 of 62



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 8/11/2020 - 8/31/2020 Aug 20, 2020  11:51AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total GLOBAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC. (120441): 3,996.00

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
108366 1 Invoice EXCHANGE 08/06/2020 100.00 51.42.532.00
108366 2 Invoice EXCHANGE 08/06/2020 100.00 52.43.532.00
108496 1 Invoice WEBSITE CHANGES/HOS 03/01/2020 139.35 01.13.512.05

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 339.35

GRTD LAWN CARE (120858)
1617 1 Invoice GRANT PARK MAINTENA 06/11/2020 1,625.00 17.52.870.04
1710 1 Invoice GRANT PARK MAINTENA 07/01/2020 325.00 17.52.870.04

Total GRTD LAWN CARE (120858): 1,950.00

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI016607 1 Invoice SWEEPER 07/28/2020 269.87 01.41.613.11

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 269.87

H & H SERVICES (120843)
3935 1 Invoice MOWING DELINQUENT P 08/15/2020 300.00 52.43.929.00

Total H & H SERVICES (120843): 300.00

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
082420 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 08/24/2020 325.00 01.13.511.07
082420 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  08/24/2020 302.50 01.13.511.08
082420 3 Invoice PARKS RESTROOMS 08/24/2020 862.50 17.52.511.00
082420 4 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 08/24/2020 290.00 01.13.511.09

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 1,780.00

HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931)
081520 1 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE 08/15/2020 31,248.34 01.13.451.00
081520 2 Invoice HSA/FAMILY/EMPLOYEE  08/15/2020 7,679.66 01.218.0
081520 3 Invoice PPO/BLUE CROSS BLUE  08/15/2020 132.42 01.218.0
081520 4 Invoice COBRA INSURANCE 08/15/2020 1,504.98 01.13.451.04

Total HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931): 40,565.40

HEIKEN, WENDY (120860)
081920 1 Invoice GUEST HOUSE LICENSE  08/19/2020 130.00 01.11.912.00

Total HEIKEN, WENDY (120860): 130.00

IL MUNICIPAL TREASURERS ASSOCIATION (120524)
081420 1 Invoice MEMERSHIP DUES 08/14/2020 70.00 01.13.561.00

Total IL MUNICIPAL TREASURERS ASSOCIATION (120524): 70.00

ILEAS (118922)
070120 1 Invoice ILEAS MEMBERSHIP DUE 07/01/2020 60.00 01.21.561.00

Page 58 of 62



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 8/11/2020 - 8/31/2020 Aug 20, 2020  11:51AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total ILEAS (118922): 60.00

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
2009812 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 08/14/2020 895.00 01.41.514.06

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 895.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
081520 1 Invoice STREET LIGHTS 08/15/2020 620.75 15.41.572.00
081520 2 Invoice CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 08/15/2020 203.78 01.13.571.01
081520 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/ELECTRI 08/15/2020 388.55 01.41.571.01
081520 4 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 08/15/2020 191.64 17.52.571.01
081520 5 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 08/15/2020 78.73 22.22.576.01
081520 6 Invoice POOL/ELECRIC 08/15/2020 303.22 59.55.571.01

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 1,786.67

JO DAVIESS COUNTY TRANSIT (235)
47775 1 Invoice SENIOR TRANSPORTATI 07/31/2020 833.00 01.13.542.00

Total JO DAVIESS COUNTY TRANSIT (235): 833.00

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
081520 1 Invoice UNIFORMS 08/15/2020 24.97 01.41.579.02
081520 2 Invoice EQUIPMENT 08/15/2020 68.73 17.52.514.00

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 93.70

KLM ENGINEERING, INC. (120861)
7913 1 Invoice INSPECTIONS 08/13/2020 2,500.00 51.42.549.02

Total KLM ENGINEERING, INC. (120861): 2,500.00

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9307769847 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/04/2020 163.71 01.41.652.00
9307786234 1 Invoice TOOLS 08/11/2020 273.12 01.41.653.00
9307786235 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/11/2020 511.59 17.52.652.00

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 948.42

LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943)
37906 1 Invoice TIRES 07/02/2020 638.68 01.41.652.01

Total LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943): 638.68

LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376)
1343164-202 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 07/31/2020 53.50 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376): 53.50

MACKAY, KRISTEN & DONALD (120863)
081020 1 Invoice CR. BALANCE REFUND 08/10/2020 3.43 98.115.0

Page 59 of 62



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 8/11/2020 - 8/31/2020 Aug 20, 2020  11:51AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total MACKAY, KRISTEN & DONALD (120863): 3.43

MNS CONSTRUCTION, INC. (118877)
15885 1 Invoice PROJECTS 08/14/2020 1,167.07 01.41.614.05

Total MNS CONSTRUCTION, INC. (118877): 1,167.07

MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133)
209986 1 Invoice REFUSE HANDLING CON 08/01/2020 14,559.06 13.44.540.04
209986 2 Invoice RECYCLING CONTRACT 08/01/2020 5,020.42 13.44.540.00
209986 3 Invoice DUMPSTER RENT 08/01/2020 60.00 13.44.544.03
209986 4 Invoice DUMPSTER DISPOSAL F 08/01/2020 163.00 01.41.573.00
209986 5 Invoice EMPTY GLASS DUMPSTE 08/01/2020 675.00 13.44.540.06

Total MONTGOMERY TRUCKING (133): 20,477.48

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)
5133120200 1 Invoice MONTHLY RATE FOR STA 08/01/2020 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

NAPA AUTO PARTS (79)
073120 1 Invoice MISC. EQUIPMENT 07/31/2020 129.95 01.41.613.12
073120 2 Invoice EQUIPMENT REPAIR 07/31/2020 43.90 17.52.514.00
073120 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 07/31/2020 42.93 17.52.652.00

Total NAPA AUTO PARTS (79): 216.78

PITTS, LYNDA (120862)
080420 1 Invoice PARK REFUND 08/04/2020 25.00 17.52.929.00

Total PITTS, LYNDA (120862): 25.00

QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INC. (120811)
080220 1 Invoice POSTAGE 08/02/2020 500.00 01.13.551.00

Total QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INC. (120811): 500.00

RIVER CITY PAVING (56)
4300018614 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIAL 07/31/2020 893.65 01.41.614.04
4300018690 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIAL 08/12/2020 514.67 01.41.614.04

Total RIVER CITY PAVING (56): 1,408.32

SENSUS USA INC. (287)
586030-1 1 Invoice SOFTWARE SUPPORT 08/11/2020 1,949.94 51.42.532.00

Total SENSUS USA INC. (287): 1,949.94

SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO (331)
4209-7 1 Invoice ST. MARKING 08/12/2020 166.60 01.41.514.01

Page 60 of 62



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 8/11/2020 - 8/31/2020 Aug 20, 2020  11:51AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO (331): 166.60

STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230)
073120 1 Invoice FUEL 07/31/2020 731.69 17.52.655.03

Total STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230): 731.69

STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (954)
0163278 1 Invoice PHOSPHORS REMOVAL  08/14/2020 1,493.65 52.43.549.00

Total STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC. (954): 1,493.65

SUPERIOR WELDING SUPPLY (181)
965953 1 Invoice WELDING SUPPLIES 07/31/2020 51.24 01.41.652.02

Total SUPERIOR WELDING SUPPLY (181): 51.24

T & T ELECTRONICS (120055)
75554 1 Invoice TV RECYCLING 08/12/2020 300.00 13.44.540.05

Total T & T ELECTRONICS (120055): 300.00

US WATER (120719)
SI13459 1 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 08/14/2020 29,254.63 52.43.515.01
SI13459 2 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 08/14/2020 29,254.62 51.42.515.00

Total US WATER (120719): 58,509.25

VAN METER INC. (141)
SO1194244.0 1 Invoice BRIDGE LIGHTS 08/07/2020 489.50 01.41.514.11

Total VAN METER INC. (141): 489.50

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
9859831297 1 Invoice VERIZON JET PACK FOR  08/15/2020 38.01 01.21.652.03
9859831298 1 Invoice IPADS/TRUCKS 08/15/2020 76.02 22.22.652.00

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 114.03

WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258)
081520 1 Invoice UNIFORMS 08/15/2020 37.00 01.41.579.02
081520 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 08/15/2020 175.39 01.41.652.00

Total WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258): 212.39

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
D090021B 1 Invoice DISINFECTING SPRAY 08/07/2020 227.43 01.11.552.01

D094370 1 Invoice PAPER TOWELS 08/07/2020 440.34 01.11.552.01
D095075 1 Invoice MISC. 08/07/2020 63.80 01.41.652.00
D095376 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 08/07/2020 215.64 01.21.654.00
D096014 1 Invoice CREDIT 08/18/2020 357.50- 01.11.552.01

Page 61 of 62



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 8/11/2020 - 8/31/2020 Aug 20, 2020  11:51AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 589.71

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
082420 1 Invoice TURNER HALL JANITORI 08/24/2020 350.00 58.54.536.00

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 350.00

WHITE, KAREN (120266)
082420 1 Invoice POLICE DEPARTMENT JA 08/24/2020 325.00 01.13.411.00

Total WHITE, KAREN (120266): 325.00

WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092)
13168 1 Invoice TREES/BRUSH 08/01/2020 680.00 01.41.517.02

Total WHITE'S LAWN CARE (119092): 680.00

WORKSHOP, THE (120647)
47725 1 Invoice FIRE/RUG SERVICE 07/31/2020 82.50 22.22.538.01
47725 2 Invoice POLICE/RUG SERVICE 07/31/2020 66.00 01.21.651.00

Total WORKSHOP, THE (120647): 148.50

ZIER'S TEST LANE (119286)
051420 1 Invoice SWEEPER 05/14/2020 21.50 01.41.613.11

Total ZIER'S TEST LANE (119286): 21.50

Grand Totals: 169,541.95

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 4817402
Vendor number hash - split: 7338825
Total number of invoices: 72
Total number of transactions: 111

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 169,541.95 169,541.95

Grand Totals: 169,541.95 169,541.95

Page 62 of 62


	00.00 Agenda 08.24.20
	01.0337 Minutes cc081020
	02.0339 Budget Amendment BA21-05
	BA21-05
	Master List FY21
	06.0209 Phosphorus Removal

	03.0340 Bench Street ADA Parking
	Bench Street ADA Parking
	Freund handicap stall app

	04.0321 Hello Galena Lease
	082420a
	GCAA Lease 2020 070120

	05.0342 Grant Hills Annex Agreement
	082420b
	Ordinance to Execute w Attachments
	Ordinance to Execute Annex Agreement
	Exhibit A Legal Description Grant Hills Motel Place
	Annexation Plat
	Annexation Agreement Grant Hills 072320 Current Clean


	06.0343 Grant Hills Annexation Ordinance
	Annexation Ordinance
	Exhibit A Legal Description Grant Hills Motel Place
	Annexation Plat
	Grant Hills Petition to Annex
	Grant Hills Petition to Annex
	Exhibit A Legal Description Grant Hills Motel Place


	07.0344 Grant Hills Rezoning
	cal no 20A-03 Rezoning 9372 US Rt 20 W
	9372 US Route 20 W - Rezoning Ordinance 2

	08.0345 Warrants 08.24.20



